

MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the
LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from scanned originals with text recognition applied
(searchable text may contain some errors and/or omissions)

ACTS AND RESOLVES
AS PASSED BY THE
Eighty-ninth and Ninetieth
Legislatures

OF THE
STATE OF MAINE

From April 21, 1939 to April 26, 1941
AND MISCELLANEOUS STATE PAPERS

Published by the Revisor of Statutes in accordance
with the Resolves of the Legislature approved June
28, 1820, March 18, 1840, March 16, 1842, and Acts
approved August 6, 1930 and April 2, 1931.

KENNEBEC JOURNAL
AUGUSTA, MAINE
1941

PROPERTY OF THE
STATE OF MAINE
NOT TO BE SOLD

Private and Special Laws

OF THE

STATE OF MAINE

As Passed by the Ninetieth Legislature

(Effective July 26, 1941)

CHAP. 5

organization of the town of Baring in the county of Washington as heretofore adopted is hereby surrendered; provided, however, that the corporate existence, powers, duties and liabilities of said town shall survive for the purpose of prosecuting and defending all pending suits and causes of suits to which said town is, or may be, a party and all needful process growing out of the same, including provisions for the payment of all or any judgments or debts which may be rendered against such town or exist in favor of any creditor.

Sec. 2. School fund and unexpended funds. The school fund deposited to the credit of said town and all funds unexpended for school purposes at the time when this act becomes effective out of amounts raised by said town for school purposes or out of amounts paid by the state for school purposes shall be paid by the treasurer of said town or such other person in whose custody such funds may be, to the treasurer of state. Such amounts, so received, shall be added to the unorganized township funds as provided in section 23 of chapter 11 of the revised statutes.

Sec. 3. Ratification. This act shall take effect on approval by the governor for the purpose of permitting its acceptance or rejection by the legal voters of the town of Baring at any annual or special town meeting legally called to consider the acceptance of this act; an appropriate article being inserted in the call for said meeting.

If a majority of the qualified voters of the town, present and voting, vote in favor of the acceptance of this act, it shall become operative on April 1, 1941. A certificate of such vote shall be filed by the town clerk with the secretary of state.

Emergency clause. In view of the emergency cited in the preamble, this act shall take effect when approved.

Approved February 18, 1941

Chapter 5

AN ACT Relating to the Port of Portland Authority.

Emergency preamble. Whereas, the government of the United States is devoting its efforts to preparation for defense in the event of war, and

Whereas, the president is urging that every effort be made by citizens to contribute to that preparation, and

Whereas, efficient and adequate facilities for the forwarding, receiving

and storing of commodities along the waterfront is of primary importance, and

Whereas, the port of Portland is of major advantage to the state and nation in this respect, and

Whereas, in the judgment of the legislature, these facts create an emergency within the meaning of section 16 of Article XXXI of the constitution of Maine and require the following legislation as immediately necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and safety;

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:

P. & S. L., 1929, c. 114, § 1, amended. Section 1 of chapter 114 of the private and special laws of 1929 is hereby amended to read as follows:

‘Sec. 1. “Port of Portland Authority,” created. There is hereby created “Port of Portland Authority,” hereinafter referred to as the “Port Authority,” which shall be a body corporate and politic, having the same rights, privileges and powers as have corporations organized under the general law in addition to, and except in so far as inconsistent with, the powers herein enumerated, with the right to adopt a common seal and to establish by-laws and regulations for the management of its affairs not repugnant to its charter and the laws of this state, and with a principal place of business and office in Portland, Maine.

(a) **District created.** There is hereby created a district to be known as the “Port of Portland” which shall include the land and waters within the limits of the cities of Portland and South Portland, together with the land and waters of Portland harbor.

(b) **Purposes; powers.** The said Port Authority is constituted a public agency of the state of Maine for the general purpose of acquiring, constructing and operating piers and terminal facilities at the port of Portland, with all the rights, privileges and power necessary therefor, and shall have the power of buying, leasing and otherwise acquiring and of holding, owning, controlling, constructing, leasing, operating and otherwise using and of selling and otherwise disposing of real and personal property and such rights and easements therein as its directors may from time to time consider necessary for the purpose of constructing, or securing the constructing or utilizing of piers and in connection therewith, highways, waterways, railroad connections, storage yards and sites for warehouses and industrial establishments, and may lay out and build thereon such piers, with buildings and appurtenances, docks, highways, waterways, railroad connections, storage yards, elevators, public warehouses, and every kind of railroad and marine terminal facility, as, in the opinion of its directors may be desirable;

CHAP. 5

but no lease for a term exceeding five years, contract for purchase or new construction exceeding five thousand dollars or deed of conveyance of real estate given by the Port Authority shall be valid until approved by the governor and council; for a term not exceeding 5 years, it may lease, demise or rent any of its real or personal property not required in the performance of its functions; and for a period not exceeding 5 years, and in a sum not exceeding \$5,000, by vote of its directors, it may make any contract or agreement for the carrying on or performance of its purposes or for the more advantageous, expeditious or convenient discharge of its duties; no form of indebtedness issued or liabilities incurred by said Port Authority shall become an obligation of the state of Maine and all instruments so issued shall so state; it may acquire, hold and operate lighters and other vessels necessary or convenient; it may establish and collect the fees, rates, rentals and other compensation for the use of its property and facilities; it shall keep account of its income and expenditures, property and liabilities, in manner approved by the state auditor, who shall audit its books of accounts at least once a year, and it shall make an annual report of the condition of its property and finances to the governor and council; the net income of the Port Authority may be used for improvements and extensions of the property of the Port Authority in the discretion of its directors. It may grade and surface any suitable railroad locations or traffic ways which are or may be located on lands, flats or rights therein, now owned or hereafter acquired by it under the provisions of this act, and may carry said ways or railroads across any railroad or railway location or public way at, above or below grade, subject however to the approval of the public utilities commission, and may provide suitable and convenient track connections between the rails serving any pier or piers and those of any existing or proposed railroad that now reaches or hereafter may reach Portland. All piers held or controlled by it shall also be accessible and open to all teaming and lighterage traffic, subject to such regulations as its directors may from time to time make. Upon application to it any railroad company that now reaches or hereafter may reach Portland, either by its own rails or under trackage or traffic contract or agreement with any other railroad company, may be provided by it with a track connection with the tracks serving such pier or piers. Bonds or other securities issued by the Port Authority shall at all times be free from taxation by the state of Maine.

(c) **May establish rates with carriers.** The Port Authority may establish by contract or otherwise through and interchange rates with carriers connecting with or using its facilities, and may make contracts with any public utility as defined in chapter ~~fifty five~~ 62 of the revised statutes, and acts amendatory thereof and additional thereto, for the use by said Port Authority of any facility of such public utility for the transportation of

property as defined in said chapter ~~fifty-five~~ 62 and acts amendatory thereof and additional thereto, or for joint use, or for use by such public utility for the furtherance of the purposes of this act, and acts amendatory thereof and additional thereto, of any facilities owned by said Port Authority or for the joint use thereof.

(d) **May file complaints against any public utility.** The Port Authority shall have the right, in accordance with the procedure prescribed in chapter ~~fifty-five~~ 62 of the revised statutes and acts amendatory thereof and additional thereto, to file complaint against any public utility or public utilities engaged within the territorial limits of the municipality of Portland in the transportation of property delivered or destined for delivery at or routed over the property of the Port Authority, representing in such complaint that said public utilities have failed to agree upon joint use of the facilities described in section ~~forty-two~~ 50 of said chapter ~~fifty-five~~ 62 belonging to them or either of them, and by such complaint to invoke the jurisdiction conferred in such cases by said section ~~forty-two~~ 50 upon the public utilities commission upon its own motion or upon complaint of any public utility affected; and said commission may, in accordance with the procedure and conditions prescribed by in said section, issue any order for such joint use by said public utilities and prescribe the compensation, terms and conditions therefor as if said proceeding had been initiated upon its own motion or upon complaint of any such public utility.

With the consent of the governor and council, first obtained, it may, by vote of its directors:

1: Make any contract not otherwise authorized relating to the purposes, duties, rights, powers and privileges enumerated in chapter 114 of the private and special laws of 1929 as amended.

2: Convey, sell, lease, demise or rent any of its property not required in the discharge or performance of its duties; hire, lease and rent from others any property deemed desirable for its purposes not otherwise authorized in said chapter 114 as amended.

3: Receive by gift, grant, devise or bequest any gift of money or real or personal property not otherwise authorized or permitted.

4: Receive from the United States Government or any of its divisions, agencies, districts or commissions, any license, grant, gift, donation or benefit with or without terms or conditions.

5: Borrow money, issue, sell and dispose of its debentures, notes or bonds, unsecured or secured by mortgage of its property or by pledge of any part of its revenues not required for maintenance and operation and the dis-

CHAP. 7

charge, performance and furtherance of its duties. Such bonds, debentures and notes shall bear interest at rates specified and upon conditions and terms enumerated.

6: Establish and set aside and maintain sinking funds for the redemption of its obligations.

All debentures, notes and bonds of said Authority, issued as aforesaid, with the consent of the governor and council, shall be legal investments for the savings banks of this state.'

Emergency clause. In view of the emergency cited in the preamble, this act shall take effect when approved.

Approved February 24, 1941

Chapter 6

AN ACT Relating to the Old Folks Home at Bath.

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:

P. & S. L., 1917, c. 2, § 2, amended. Section 2 of chapter 2 of the private and special laws of 1917 is hereby amended to read as follows:

'Sec. 2. May hold property to amount of \$1,000,000. Under the above name, said corporation may sue and be sued, take by purchase, gift, devise, bequest or otherwise, real and personal property, and hold the same for the purpose expressed in section one to an amount not exceeding ~~four hundred thousand dollars~~ \$1,000,000; and may control, manage, sell and dispose of the same for the purpose aforesaid; and shall possess all the rights, privileges and immunities, and be subject to all the duties and liabilities that pertain and belong to corporations created for charitable purposes under the laws of this state.'

Approved February 24, 1941

Chapter 7

AN ACT Relating to the Protestant Episcopal Church in Maine.

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:

P. & S. L., 1869, c. 180, § 7, amended. Section 7 of chapter 180 of the private and special laws of 1869, as amended by section 2 of chapter 22 of